CONCILIATION AGREEMENT
Between
THE U. S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
OFFICE OF FEDERAL CONTRACT COMPLIANCE PROGRAMS
and
HUMANA INC.

PART I. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (“*OFCCP”) evaluated Humana Inc.,
located at 500 West Main Street, Louisville, Kentucky 40202 (“Humana Corporate™) beginning
on May 9, 2013. OFCCP found that Humana Corporate failed to comply with Executive Order
11246, as amended (“E.O. 11246"), and its implementing regulations issued pursuant thereto at
41 C.F.R. Chapter 60.

OFCCP notified Humana Corporate of the specific violations and the corrective actions required
in a Notice of Violations (“NOV™) issued on May 25, 2017,

In the interest of resolving the violations without engaging in further legal proceedings, and in
exchange for sufficient and valuable consideration described in this document, QFCCP and
Humana Corporate enter into this Conciliation Agreement (“Agreement”) and the parties agree
to all the terms herein. The attachments to this Agreement are deemed incorporated into this
Agreement.

PART II. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Inexchange for Humana Corporate’s fulfillment of its obligations in this Agreement,
OFCCP will not institute administrative or judicial enforcement proceedings under E.O.
11246 based on the violations described in the NOV and Part III below. However, OFCCP
retains the right to initiate legal proceedings to enforce this Agreement if Humana
Corporate violates any provision of this Agreement. In addition, nothing in this Agreement
precludes OFCCP from initiating enforcement proceedings based on future compliance
evaluations or complaint investigations.

2. OFCCP may review Humana Corporate’s compliance with this Agreement. During the
term of this Agreement, Humana Corporate shall, upon reasonable written request from
OFCCP, provide OFCCP hard copy or electronic reports, including those specified in this
Agreement; provide reasonable access to inspect the premises during normal business
hours; provide reasonable access to witnesses for interviews: and provide reasonable access
to and copies of documents as may be relevant to determine whether Humana Corporate
has complied with this Agreement.

3. Nothing in this Agreement relieves Humana Corporate of its obligation to fully comply
with the requirements of E.O. 11246, Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended, 29 U.S.C. § 793 (“Section 503"), and the Vietnam Era Veterans’ Readjustment
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Assistance Act of 1974, as amended, 38 U.S.C. § 4212 (“VEVRAA™), their implementing
regulations, or other applicable laws enforcing non-discrimination or equal employment
opportunity through affirmative action.

Humana Corporate agrees that it will not retaliate against any potential or actual
beneficiary of this Agreement or against any person who files a complaint, who has
provided information or assistance, or who participates in any manner in any investigation
or proceeding under E.O. 11246, Section 503, and/or VEVRAA.

The parties understand the terms of this Agreement and enter into it voluntarily.

Subject to Humana Corporate’s performance of all promises and representations contained
in this Agreement, the alleged violations set forth in this Agreement will be resolved. This
Agreement, including its attachments, constitutes the entire Agreement and represents the
complete and final understanding of the parties. This Agreement contains all of the terms
binding on the parties and it supersedes ali prior written or oral negotiations and
agreements. Any modifications or amendments to this Agreement must be agreed upon in
writing and signed by all parties.

If one or more provisions of this Agreement are deemed unlawful or unenforceable, the
remaining provisions will remain in full force and effect.

This Agreement becomes effective on the day it is signed by the Regional Director of the
Southeastern Region (the “Effective Date™).

This Agreement will expire sixty (60) days after Humana Corporate submits its final report
unless OFCCP notifies Humana Corporate in writing prior to the expiration date that
Humana Corporate has failed to fulfill all of its obligations under the Agreement, in which
case this Agreement is automatically extended until the date that OFCCP determines that
Humana Corporate has met all of its obligations under the Agreement.

If OFCCP believes that Humana Corporate has violated any provision of this Agreement
while it is in effect:

A.  The procedures set forth at 41 C.F.R. § 60-1.34 will govern:

a.  OFCCP will send Humana Corporate a written notice stating the alleged
violations and summarizing any supporting evidence within 15 days of
identifying an alleged violation.

b.  Humana Corporate will have 15 days from receipt of the notice to respond,
except when such a delay would result in irreparable injury to the employment
rights of affected employees or applicants.

¢.  If Humana Corporate is unable to demonstrate that it has not violated the
Agreement, or if OFCCP’s notice alleges irreparable injury, enforcement
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proceedings may be initiated immediately without issuing a show cause notice
or without proceeding through any other requirement contained in Chapter 60 of
Title 41 of the Code of Federal Regulations.

B. Humana Corporate may be subject to the sanctions set forth in Section 209 of the
Executive Order, 41 C.F.R. § 60-1.27 and/or other appropriate relief for violation of
this Agreement.

This Agreement does not constitute an admission or denial by Humana Corporate of any
violation of E.Q. 11246, Section 503, VEVRAA, or other laws, implementing regulations,
or other federal contractor obligations enforced by OFCCP, nor has there been an
adjudicated finding that Humana Corporate violated any laws, implementing regulations, or
other federal contractor obligations enforced by OFCCP.

If OFCCP believes that Humana Corporate has violated this Agreement, OFCCP may seek
enforcement of this Agreement itself and is not required to present proof of any underlying
violations resolved by this Agreement.

The parties understand and agree that nothing in this Agreement is binding on
governmental departments or agencies other than the United States Department of Labor.

Each party shall bear its own fees and expenses with respect to this matter.

This Agreement is limited to the facts of this case. Neither this Agreement, nor any part of
the negotiations that occurred in connection with this Agreement, shall constitute
admissible evidence with respect to any OFCCP policy, practice or position in any lawsuit,
legal proceeding, administrative proceeding, compliance evaluation or audit, except for
legal or administrative proceedings concerning the enforcement or interpretation of this
specific Agreement.

The parties agree that this Agreement shall not create any right of action in any third
parties, nor shall it be offered in evidence or otherwise used in any manner by any
person, firm, corporation, entity, organization, or agency of any government in an
attempt to prove that Humana Inc. has violated any law, regulation, or order, except for
proceedings initiated to enforce the provisions of this Agreement.

All references to “days” in this Agreement are to calendar days. If any deadline for an
obligation scheduled to be performed under this Agreement falls on a weekend or Federal
holiday, that deadline will be extended to the next business day.

PART IIL SPECIFIC VIOLATIONS AND REMEDIES

1.

COMPENSATION DISCRIMINATION

OFCCP asserts that in 2011-12, Humana Corporate discriminated against Females
employed in the Applications Consultant, Consultant, Manager, and Project Manager



base roles by paying them less in annualized salary than similarly-situated Males
employed in the same base roles, which OFCCP contends constitutes pattern or practice
disparate treatment in the administration of compensation, in violation of 41 C.F.R. § 60-
L4(a)(1).

OFCCP performed a regression analysis based on information gathered during the
compliance review which shows that in 2011-12, Humana Corporate paid Females
employed in Applications Consultant, Consultant, Manager, and Project Manager base role
positions less per year than similarly-situated Male employees. OFCCP’s analysis
demonstrated that a statistically-significant disparity in compensation remained even when
legitimate factors affecting pay were taken into account. After examining personnel
records; interviewing managers and human resources personnel, employees and selecting
officials; and considering all evidence gathered during the investigation, OFCCP
determined that this practice of paying Females less was based on gender and not based on
legitimate explanatory factors.

Humana Corporate denies that it discriminated against Females employed in the
Applications Consultant, Consultant, Manager, and Project Manager base roles by paying
them less than similarly-situated Males employed in the same base roles.

NOTICE TO CLASS MEMBERS

A.  For purposes of this Agreement only, the affected Class Members (“Class Members”)
identified by OFCCP are 77 Female Applications Consultants, 391 Female
Consultants, 146 Female Managers, and 139 Female Project Managers. These Class
Members are identified in Attachment A to this Agreement.

B.  Within sixty (60) days of the Effective Date, Humana Corporate will notify all Class
Members of the terms of this Agreement by mailing a first-class letter to each such
Class Member. The mailing must include: the Notice to Affected Class Members
(Attachment B, “Notice”), the Information Verification Form (Attachment C,
“Verification Form™), the Release of Claims under Executive Order 11246 Form
(Attachment D, “Release”) and a postage paid, seif-addressed, return envelope. Each
Class Member (or her legal representative in the event she is deceased) shall be given
thirty-three (33) days from the postmark date of the Notice to respond by returning
the completed Verification Form and Release to Humana Corporate. Any response
postmarked by the thirty-third day following the postmark date of the Notice shall be
considered to have been submitted within the thirty-three (33) day period.

C.  Within twenty (20) days of its receipt of the last completed Verification Form and
Release submitted within the thirty-three (33) day period, Humana Corporate shall
provide OFCCP with the following:

a.  Viaovernight mail and/or email, copies of all completed Verification Forms and
Releases returned to Humana Corporate within the thirty-three (33) day period;



b.  Viaovernight mail and/or email, copies of all completed Verification Forms and
Releases returned to Humana Corporate after expiration of the thirty-three (33)
day period and the envelopes bearing a postmark date; and

¢.  Viaovernight mail and/or email, a list of any Class Members who did not
respond at all to the Notice or whose Verification Forms and Releases were
returned to Humana Corporate as undeliverable, as well as evidence showing
the documents were returned as undeliverable. Humana Corporate shall include
the last known address and other last known contact information for any such
Class Members.

Upon receipt of the list of any Class Members who did not respond at all to the
Notice or whose Verification Form and Release was returned to Humana Corporate as
undeliverable, OFCCP shall attempt to verify the current addresses of the Class
Members who are identified on the list. Within fifteen (15) days of its receipt of such
list, OFCCP shall provide Humana Corporate, via email, a list of those Class
Members identified on Humana Corporate’s list for whom OFCCP was able to verify
current addresses.

Within twenty (20) days of receiving OFCCP’s list, Humana Corporate will mail to
each Class Member for whom OFCCP was able to verify a current address, copies of
the Notice, Verification Form and Release, and a postage-paid, self-addressed return
envelope (“Second Mailing™). Each such Class Member (or her legal representative
in the event that she is deceased) shall be given thirty-three (33) days from the
postmark date of the second Notice to respond by returning the completed
Verification Form and Release to Humana Corporate. Any response postmarked by
the thirty-third day following the postmark date of the Notice shall be considered to
have been submitted within the thirty-three (33) day period.

Upon receipt of the last completed Verification Form and Release submitted within
the thirty-three (33) day period in response to the Second Mailing, Humana Corporate
will compile a list of all Class Members who have submitted completed Verification
Forms and Releases in accordance with the instructions in the Notice and within the
thirty-three (33) day period in response to either the initial mailing or the Second
Mailing. This list shall constitute the “Final List.” Humana Corporate may choose to
include on the Final List any Class Member who returned a completed Verification
Form and Release after the thirty-three (33) day period expired, but it is under no
obligation to do so.

Within fifteen (15) days of its receipt of the last completed Verification Form and
Release submitted within the thirty-three (33) day period in response to the Second
Mailing, Humana Corporate shall submit to OFCCP, via overnight mail and/or email,
the Final List and copies of all completed Verification Forms and Releases not
previously submitted to OFCCP.



If OFCCP believes any Class Member should be included on the Final List but is not,
it shall notify Humana Corporate in writing, via email, and identify any such Class
Member within fifteen (15) days of its receipt of the Final List. In such written
notification, OFCCP shall provide Humana Corporate the reasons why it believes any
Class Member should be included on the Final List. The parties will make every
effort and negotiate in good faith to resolve any dispute between them about inclusion
or exclusion of any Class Member on the Final List. Any Class Members whom the
parties agree will be added to the Final List pursuant to this paragraph will be added
no later than thirty-five (35) days after OFCCP’s receipt of the Final List.

The individuals on the Final List, including any amendments made to the Final List
pursuant to Part II1.2.H. above, shall be referred to as Eligible Class Members and
shall be entitled to a monetary recovery.

Class Members who do not respond to the Notice at all shall not be entitled to any
relief described herein. Class Members who complete the Verification Form and
Release but return them to Humana Corporate after the thirty-three (33) day period
has expired shall not be entitled to any relief described herein unless Humana
Corporate chooses to include their names on the Final List pursuant to Part 111.2.F. or
if the parties agree to include their names on the Final List pursuant to Part II1.2.H.
above.

3. SETTLEMENT FUND

A.

In settlement of all claims for back pay and interest to the affected class, Humana
Corporate agrees to pay to the Eligible Class Members a total of Two Million Five
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,500,000.00), inclusive of back pay and interest, as
preliminarily outlined in Attachment A,

Within fifteen (15) days after the Effective Date, Humana Corporate will deposit the
total amount into an interest-bearing account at an FDIC-insured banking institution.
Humana Corporate will notify OFCCP no later than ten (10} days after this action is
complete and will provide appropriate documentation to OFCCP at that time, said
documentation to include the name and address of the FDIC-insured banking
institution, the account number, the date of deposit, the deposit amount, and bank
records showing the deposit amount. In addition, upon written request, Humana
Corporate will provide OFCCP, within twenty (20) days of receiving such a request,
with copies of bank records showing the current balance of the account, a list of
transactions, and the amount of accrued interest on the account.

The amount of $2,500,000.00, plus additional interest that accrues on the interest-
bearing account (“Settlement Fund™), represents the total negotiated amount of back
pay and accrued interest due under this Agreement owed to the Eligible Class
Members.



Within fifteen (15) days of the parties’ agreement of the identity of the Eligible Class
Members, OFCCP will recalculate the total back pay and interest amount owed each
Class Member on Attachment A and send this information to Humana Corporate.
Included will be each Eligible Class member’s minimum gross payment and
proportionate percentage of the Settlement that the Eligible Class Member will
receive pursuant (o the Agreement (“Proportionate Percentage™).

Within thirty (30) days of receiving the list from OFCCP showing the gross payments
and Proportionate Percentages, Humana Corporate will take the following actions:

a.  Pay each Eligible Class Member who is employed by Humana Corporate the
gross amount listed in the recalculated Attachment A in the manner in which the
Eligible Class Member is normally paid her regular salary (e.g., direct deposit,
check, etc.). Said payment shall be subject to all lawful deductions as set forth
in Part I11.3.F., below; and

b.  Mail a check to all other Eligible Class Members in the respective amounts,
subject to all lawful deductions, as set forth in in Part 1I1.3.F., below.

Humana Corporate shall make all legal deductions required by law (e.g., federal,
state, and/or local taxes and FICA) and shall pay to the Internal Revenue Service the
employer’s share of Social Security withholdings attributable to the funds designated
as back pay and paid to each Eligible Class Member. At such time as Humana
Corporate provides its employees with Form W-2s, Humana Corporate shall also mail
a Form W-2 to each Eligible Class Member who is not employed by Humana
Corporate. For any portion designated as interest, Humana Corporate will not make
any deductions and will issue a Form 1099 at the same time it issues the Form W-2.

Within forty-five (45) days of making the payments as set forth in Part IIL.3.E.,
above, Humana Corporate will provide OFCCP with:

a.  Payroll stubs or the equivalent verifying that it has paid Eligible Class Members
who are employed by Humana Corporate, pursuant to Part [I1.3.E.a., above;

b.  Proof that payments to Eligible Class Members have been cashed; and

c.  Documentation of all other undeliverable payments and all checks returned as
undeliverable at the end of each subsequent thirty (30) day period during which
any such cancelled and/or returned checks are received, up to 180 days after the
date of mailing checks to Eligible Class Members as set forth in Part II1.3.E.

OFCCP will have thirty (30) days from receipt of any checks returned as
undeliverable to an Eligible Class Member to locate the specific Eligible Class
Member and to inform Humana Corporate of a corrected address so that the check
may be re-mailed. Humana Corporate will re-mail the check by first-class mail
within fifteen (15) days of receiving from OFCCP the corrected address.



Any check sent to an Eligible Class Member which remains uncashed 180 days after
the date on which the check was initially mailed to the Eligible Class Member, the
date on which the check was mailed to the Eligible Class Member for the second time
pursuant to the process described in Part II1.3.H., above, or the date upon which the
check mailed to the Eligible Class Member is returned as undeliverable after the
process described in Part IT1.3.H., above has been completed (whichever is later),
shall be void.

Humana Corporate will not make a second distribution of any uncashed funds.
Instead, Humana Corporate will use any uncashed funds to conduct EEO training at
the Corporate office,

4. SALARY ADJUSTMENTS

A.

Humana Corporate has informed OFCCP that its compensation structure will be
completely revised by June 2018 and the base role titles of Applications Consultant,
Consultant, Manager, and Project Manager will no longer exist. Consequently, no
later than April 1, 2019, Humana Corporate shall conduct a compensation analysis for
Humana Corporate Female employees whose new base role is mapped to a former
Applications Consultant, Consultant, Manager, or Project Manager base role at the
Corporate facility. Humana Corporate will provide the compensation database used
in Humana Corporate’s analysis to OFCCP. Humana Corporate will also provide
OFCCP with all pertinent information (in Excel format, if possible) necessary for
OFCCP to replicate Humana Corporate’s compensation analysis and for OFCCP to
conduct a compensation analysis for Humana Corporate Females whose new base
role is mapped to a former Applications Consultant, Consultant, Manager, or Project
Manager base role at Humana Corporate, including but not limited to, payroll data
and information relating to base salary and salary adjustments as well as the gender of
all new employees hired at Humana Corporate into equivalent roles as Applications
Consultant, Consultant, Manager, and Project Manager. In addition, Humana
Corporate will provide OFCCP with a narrative discussing the results of Humana
Corporate’s compensation analysis. Humana Corporate will investigate and remedy,
through salary adjustments, any statistically-significant compensation disparities
identified by Humana Corporate based on gender that cannot be explained by
legitimate factors.

Twelve months after the initial compensation analysis required in IIL4.A., above,
Humana Corporate will conduct an additional compensation analysis for Humana
Corporate Female employees whose new base role is mapped to a former
Applications Consultant, Consultant, Manager, or Project Manager base role at the
Corporate facility. Humana Corporate will provide the compensation database used in
its analysis to OFCCP. Humana Corporate will also provide OFCCP with all
pertinent information (in Excel format, if possible) necessary for OFCCP to replicate
Humana Corporate’s compensation analysis and for OFCCP to conduct a
compensation analysis for Humana Corporate Females whose new base role is



mapped to a former Applications Consultant, Consultant, Manager, and Project
Manager base role at Humana Corporate, including but not limited to, payroll data
and information relating to base salary and salary adjustments as well as the gender of
all new employees hired at Humana Corporate into equivalent roles as Applications
Consultant, Consultant, Manager, and Project Manager. In addition, Humana
Corporate will provide OFCCP with a narrative discussing the results. Humana
Corporate will investigate and remedy, through salary adjustments, any statistically-
significant compensation disparities identified by Humana Corporate based on gender
that cannot be explained by legitimate factors.

NON-MONETARY REMEDIES FOR AFFECTED CLASS

A.

Equal Employment Opportunities. Humana Corporate will ensure that all employees
are afforded equal employment opportunities with respect to Humana Corporate’s
policies and practices that affect compensation. Humana Corporate agrees to
continue or to implement the corrective actions detailed below.

Evaluation. For Humana Corporate employees whose new base role is mapped to a
former Applications Consultant, Consultant, Manager, or Project Manager base role
at the Corporate facility, Humana Corporate will evaluate whether starting salaries,
salary increases, promotion decisions, performance evaluation ratings, and any other
factor relevant to base pay have a disproportionately negative effect on the
compensation of female employees.

Implement Improved Policies. Humana Corporate will continue to review its
compensation policies and revise them as necessary to eliminate all practices that
have an adverse effect on the compensation of Humana Corporate female
employees whose new base role is mapped to a former Applications Consultant,
Consultant, Manager, or Project Manager base role at the Corporate facility.
Humana Corporate will review and revise its guidelines, as necessary, for
determining the starting salaries to be assigned to newly-hired employees. Humana
Corporate will develop and implement policies and procedures to track and to
evaluate compensation decisions for compliance with the revisions made by
Humana Corporate to its compensation policies to ensure that all compensation
decisions are non-discriminatory.

Record Retention. Humana Corporate will ensure that its policy for record
retention meets or exceeds the requirements of 41 C.F.R. §§ 60-1.12(a) and 60-3.

Training. Within one hundred eighty (180) days of the Effective Date, Humana
Corporate will train all individuals involved in any way in determining
compensation for any base role mapped to a former Applications Consultant,
Consultant, Manager, or Project Manager role at the Corporate office on any new
and/or revised policies, procedures, and programs developed under Part II1.5.C.of
this Agreement.



F.  Self-Monitoring/Auditing. Humana Corporate will monitor base salaries of
Humana Corporate female employees whose new base role is mapped to a former
Applications Consultant, Consultant, Manager, or Project Manager base role at the
Corporate facility for any indication of statistically-significant disparities based on
gender and will investigate and remedy, through salary adjustments, any such
inequity that cannot be explained by legitimate factors.

PART IV. REPORTS REQUIRED
1.  Humana Corporate will submit the documents and reports described below to:

District Director
United States Department of Labor
Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs
600 Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Place, Room 352
Louisville, Kentucky 40202

A. Within one hundred twenty (120) days of the Effective Date, Humana Corporate
will submit a copy of any written revised compensation policies and practices
described in Part I11.5.C. of this Agreement.

B. Within one hundred twenty (120) days of the Effective Date, Humana Corporate will
submit copies of all documents showing it has taken the Corrective Actions identified
under Part II1.2. of this Agreement.

C.  Within one hundred eighty (180) days of the Effective Date, Humana Corporate will
submit documentation that all managers, supervisors, and other personnel involved in
making compensation decisions for any base role mapped to a former Applications
Consultant, Consultant, Manager, or Project Manager role at the Corporate office
have received training on any revised policies, procedures, and programs developed
under Part II1.5.E. of this Agreement. The documentation will include the dates of
the training, the names and job titles of all attendees, an outline of the topics
discussed during the training, and the name and job title of each person who
conducted the training.

D. Humana Corporate will submit all documents and information referenced in Parts III
and IV of this Agreement within the prescribed timeframes.

E. Humana Corporate will submit two progress reports. The first report will be due on
May 31, 2019. The subsequent report will be due on June 1, 2020, utilizing
compensation data current as of April 1, 2020, as described in Part IT11.4.A and B of
this Agreement. Humana Corporate will submit the following in each progress
report:

a.  Humana Corporate will provide OFCCP, as described in Part III of this
Agreement:

10
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i The compensation database and all additional information identified in
Part II1.4., above;

il. Information (in Excel, if possible) for OFCCP to conduct a
compensation analysis for Females whose new base role is mapped to a
former Applications Consultant, Consultant, Manager, or Project
Manager base role at the Corporate facility, identifying any statistically-
significant differences in pay, and;

iii. If statistically-significant pay differences that cannot be explained by
legitimate factors are identified by Humana Corporate, documentation of
pay adjustments to eliminate the differences.

b.  Humana Corporate will provide documentation describing all salary
adjustments required by Part II1.4. of this Agreement. The documentation will
include the amount of each adjustment, the date each adjustment will be/was
made, and the gender of each individual receiving an adjustment.

Humana Corporate agrees to retain all records relevant to the violations cited in Part III
above, and the reports submitted or created in compliance with this Agreement. These
records include underlying data and information such as Human Resources Information
System (HRIS) and payroll data, job applications and personnel records, and any other
records or data used to generate the required reports. Humana Corporate will retain these
records until this Agreement expires or for the time period consistent with regulatory
requirements, whichever is later.

11



PART V, SIGNATURES

The person signing this Agreement on behalf of Humana Inc. personally warrants that he or she
is fully authorized to do so, that Humana Inc, has entered into this Agreement voluntarily and

with full knowledge of the effect, and that execution of this Agreement is fully binding on
Humana Inc. ‘

This Agreement is hereby executed by and between the Office of Federal Contract Compliance
Programs and Humana Inc,

Timothy S. Huval
Chief Human Resources Officer Compliance Officer

Humana Inc. Nashville District Office
OFCCP - Southeast Region

DATE: ,E[La_,ug . DATE: _2/1b/20|3

Valerie Y. McClelland , E. Michelle Hernandez

Assistant District Direcior District Director

Nashville District Office Nashville District Office

OFCCP - Southenst Region OFCCP - Southeast Region
oare Bl(6]2018 e 3162018

s aiden
< Regional Director
OFCCP - Southeast Region

pate:_ O ?/ / ‘7/)7 o5
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ATTACHMENT A

AFFECTED CLASS MEMBERS

Applications Consultant

13

Estimated Back Pay Estimated Interest Estimated Total
$2,943.56 $618.15 $3,561.71
$2,295.25 $482.00 $2,777.25
$3,076.31 $646.03 $3,722.34
$2,721.05 $571.42 $3,292.47
$3,057.87 $642.15 $3,700.02
$2,505.30 $526.11 $3,031.42
$2,529.71 $531.24 $3,060.95
$2,827.44 $593.76 $3,421.21
$2,587.80 $543.44 $3,131.23
$2,495.34 $524.02 $3,019.36
$3,255.32 $683.62 $3,938.94
$2,614.39 $549.02 $3,163.42
$2,816.83 $591.53 $3,408.36
$3,124.82 $656.21 $3,781.04
$2,085.70 $438.00 $2,523.69
$2,121.72 $445.56 $2,567.29
$3,394.93 $712.93 $4,107.86
$3,283.26 $689.48 $3,972.74
$2,929 .30 $615.15 $3,544 .45
$2,522.32 $529.69 $3,052.01
$2,675.86 $561.93 $3,237.79
$2,505.60 $526.18 $3,031.78
$2,357.22 $495.02 $2,852.24
$2,651.52 $556.82 $3,208.34
$2,471.47 $519.01 $2,990.48
$2,725.86 $572.43 $3,298.29
$3,096.92 $650.35 $3,747.28
$2,830.17 $594.34 $3,424.51
$2,936.44 $616.65 $3,553.10
$2,253.56 $473.25 $2,726.80
$2,903.06 $609.64 $3,512.70
$2,408.46 $505.78 $2,914.24
$2,298.04 $482.59 $2,780.62
$2,405.79 $505.22 $2,911.01
$2,501.21 $525.25 $3,026.47
$2312.86 $485.70 $2,798.56




Applications Consultant

ID

Estimated Back Pay Estimated Interest Estimated Total
$2,517.37 $528.65 $3,046.02
$2,612.08 $548.54 $3,160.62
$2,105.92 $442.24 $2,548.16
$2,343.70 $492.18 $2,835.88
$2,591.98 $544.32 $3,136.29
$2,631.62 $552.64 $3,184.26
$2,354.76 $494.50 $2,849.26
$2,460.20 $516.64 $2,976.85
$2,490.51 $523.01 $3,013.51
$2,741.30 $575.67 $3,316.98
$2,223.91 $467.02 $2,690.93
$2,550.08 $535.52 $3,085.59
$2,455.37 $515.63 $2,971.00
$2,657.72 $558.12 $3,215.84
$2,728.55 $573.00 $3,301.55
$2,646.45 $555.75 $3,202.20
$2,158.73 $453.33 $2,612.06
$2,451.10 $514.73 $2,965.83
$2,591.89 $544.30 $3,136.18
$2,120.15 $445.23 $2,565.39
$2,022.27 $424.68 $2,446.95
$2,126.35 $446.53 $2,572.88
$2,372.17 $498.15 $2,870.32
$2,490.77 $523.06 $3,013.84
$2,442.74 $512.97 $2,955.71
$2,461.12 $516.84 $2,977.96
$2,406.30 $505.32 $2,911.62
$2,393.31 $502.59 $2,895.90
$2,668.69 $560.42 $3,229.11
$2,604.93 $547.04 $3,151.97
$2,298.04 $482.59 $2,780.62
$2,647.96 $556.07 $3,204.03
$2,787.29 $585.33 $3,372.63
$2,223.91 $467.02 $2,690.93
$2,668.69 $560.42 $3,229.11
$2,673.67 $561.47 $3,235.14
$2,016.82 $423.53 $2,440.35
$2,372.17 $498.15 $2,870.32
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Applications Consultant

ID

Estimated Back Pay Estimated Interest Estimated Total
$2,381.06 $500.02 $2,881.08
$2,520.43 $529.29 $3,049.72
$2,223.91 $467.02 $2,690.93




Consultant

ID

Estimated Back Pay Estimated Interest Estimated Total
$2,889.90 $606.88 $3,496.78
$2,467.40 $518.15 $2,985.56
$2,264.60 $475.57 $2,740.17
$2,576.64 $541.09 $3,117.74
$1,853.53 $389.24 $2,242.77
$2,067.17 $434.11 $2,501.28
$2,467.40 $518.15 $2,985.56
$1,981.90 $416.20 $2,398.10
$2,103.04 $441.64 $2,544.67
$2,994.01 $628.74 $3,622.75
$2,474.43 $519.63 $2,994.06
$2,954.12 $620.37 $3,574.49
$1,723.80 $362.00 $2,085.80
$2,756.39 $578.84 $3,335.23
$2,684.77 $563.80 $3,248.57
$2,058.42 $432.27 $2,490.69 |
$2,531.69 $531.65 $3,063.34
$1,845.14 $387.48 $2,232.62
$2,213.90 $464.92 $2,678.82
$3,573.54 $750.44 $4,323.98
$2,843.43 $597.12 $3,440.55
$2,805.40 $589.13 $3,394.54
$2,917.55 $612.69 $3,530.23
$2,010.22 $422.15 $2,432.37
$2,957.30 $621.03 $3,578.33
$1,927.07 $404.69 $2,331.76
$2,288.26 $480.53 $2,768.80
$2,440.87 $512.58 $2,953.45
$2,224.95 $467.24 $2,692.19
$2,113.24 $443.78 $2,557.03
$2,636.40 $553.64 $3,190.05
$2,737.80 $574.94 $3,312.74
$2,149.68 $451.43 $2,601.11
$2,670.20 $560.74 $3,230.94
$4,519.16 $949.02 $5,468.19
$2,585.70 $543.00 $3,128.70
$2,936.00 $616.56 $3,552.57
$2,595.84 $545.13 $3,140.97
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Consultant

ID Estimated Back Pay Estimated Interest Estimated Total
$2,342.07 $491.83 $2,833.91
$2,305.16 $5484.08 $2,789.24
$2,024.79 $425.21 $2,450.00
$3,386.76 $711.22 $4,097.98
$2,851.54 $598.82 $3,450.36
$2,299.99 $483.00 $2,782.99
$2,289.44 $480.78 $2,770.23
$1,994.20 $418.78 $2,412.98
$1,972.70 $414.27 $2,386.97
$1,972.70 $414.27 $2,386.97
$2,766.84 $581.04 $3,347.87
$2,163.20 $454.27 $2,617.47
$2,331.52 $489.62 $2,821.15
$2,519.96 $529.19 $3,049.15
$2,631.77 $552.67 $3,184.44
$2,783.97 $584.63 $3,368.61
$2,048.62 $430.21 $2,478.83
$3,124.81 $656.21 $3,781.02
$1,926.60 $404.59 $2,331.19
$1,709.60 $359.02 $2,068.62
$2,033.14 $426.96 $2,460.10
$1,994.20 $418.78 $2,412.98
$2,202.44 $462.51 $2,664.96
$2,873.00 $603.33 $3,476.33
$2,959.19 $621.43 $3,580.62
$1,626.42 $341.55 $1,967.97
$2,698.09 $566.60 $3,264.68
$2,298.40 $482.66 $2,781.07
$1,898.21 $398.62 $2,296.83
$2,287.48 $480.37 $2,767.85
$2,161.88 $454.00 $2,615.88
$2,430.12 $510.33 $2,940.44
$1,919.13 $403.02 $2,322,15
$1,774.50 $372.65 $2,147.15
$2,088.84 $438.66 $2,527.50
$2,768.93 $581.48 $3,350.41
$2,539.77 $533.35 $3,073.12
$2,893.79 $607.70 $3,501.48
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Consultant

ID Estimated Back Pay Estimated Interest Estimated Total
$2,873.00 $603.33 $3,476.33
$3,272.42 $687.21 $3,959.62
$1,840.61 $386.53 $2,227.14
$1,759.80 $369.56 $2,129.36
$1,923.46 $403.93 $2,327.38
$2,050.92 $430.69 $2,481.61
$2,197.00 $461.37 $2,658.37
$2,102.29 $441.48 $2,543.77
$2,253.11 $473.15 $2,726.26
$1,901.59 $399.33 $2,300.92
$1,994 .20 $418.78 $2,412.98
$2,028.00 $425.88 $2,453.88
$1,864.65 $391.58 $2,256.22
$1,660.12 $348.63 $2,008.75
$2,884.05 $605.65 $3,489.70
$2,974.40 $624.62 $3,599.03
$2,044.90 $429.43 $2,474.33
$1,690.00 $354.90 $2,044.90
$1,694.60 $355.87 $2,050.46
$3,052.88 $641.11 $3,693.99
$3,244.80 $681.41 $3,926.21
$2,137.51 $448.88 $2,586.39
$3,041.36 $638.69 $3,680.04
$1,919.67 $403.13 $2,322.80
$2,129.40 $447.17 $2,576.57
$1,683.24 $353.48 $2,036.72
$2,190.24 $459.95 $2,650.19
$3,982.69 $836.36 $4,819.05
$1,725.46 $362.35 $2,087.80
$1,800.49 $378.10 $2,178.60
$2,197.00 $461.37 $2,658.37
$2,888.01 $606.48 $3,494.49
$2,335.18 $490.39 $2,825.56
$2,366.91 $497.05 $2,863.97
$3,234.66 $679.28 $3,913.94
$1,710.92 $359.29 $2,070.22
$3,292.73 $691.47 $3,984.20
$1,610.57 $338.22 $1,948.79
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Consultant

Estimated Back Pay Estimated Interest Estimated Total
$1,892.80 $397.49 $2,290.29
$1,740.67 $365.54 $2,106.21
$1,861.33 $390.88 $2,252.21
$2,180.10 $457.82 $2,637.92
$2,349.95 $493.49 $2,843.43
$2,788.50 $585.59 $3,374.09
$2,535.00 $532.35 $3,067.35
$2,211.37 $464.39 $2,675.75
$2,007.01 $421.47 $2,428.48
$3,110.68 $653.24 $3,763.93
$3,008.20 $631.72 $3,639.92
$1,554.80 $326.51 $1,881.31
$1,960.40 $411.68 $2,372.08
$3,866.72 5812.01 $4,678.73
$2,129.40 $447.17 $2,576.57
$1,859.00 $390.39 $2,249.39
$2,535.00 $532.35 $3.067.35
$2,176.72 $457.11 $2,633.83
$1,926.60 $404.59 $2,331.19
$2,178.88 $457.57 $2,636.45
$2,149.68 - $451.43 $2,601.11
$2,827.51 $593.78 $3,421.28
$2,233.23 $468.98 $2,702.21
$1,985.75 $417.01 $2,402.76
$2,034.08 $427.16 $2,461.24
$2,258.92 $474.37 $2,733.30
$2,433.60 $511.06 $2,944.66
$1,964.39 $412.52 $2,376.91
$2,501.20 $525.25 $3,026.45
$2,163.20 $454.27 $2,617.47
$2,704.00 $567.84 $3,271.84
$2,112.50 $443.63 $2,556.13
$1,938.87 $407.16 $2,346.03
$2,370.19 $497.74 $2,867.93
$2,163.20 $454.27 $2,617.47
$2,864.28 $601.50 $3,465.78
$2,248.51 $472.19 $2,720.70
$1,723.80 $362.00 $2,085.80

19




Consultant

Estimated Back Pay Estimated Interest Estimated Total
$2,663.27 $559.29 $3,222.56
$1,774.50 $372.65 $2,147.15
$1,926.60 $404.59 $2,331.19
$2,359.41 $495.48 $2,854.89
$1,775.51 $372.86 $2,148.37
$1,622.40 $340.70 $1,963.10
$2,264.60 $475.57 $2,740.17
$2,906.80 $610.43 $3,517.23
$2,095.60 $440.08 $2,535.68
$1,672.42 $351.21 $2,023.63
$1,671.41 $351.00 $2,022.41
$2,637.04 $553.78 $3,190.82
$2,557.65 $537.11 $3.094.75
$1,825.20 $383.29 $2,208.49
$1,588.60 $333.61 $1,922.2]
$2,545.95 $534.65 $3,080.60
$1,622.40 $340.70 $1,963.10
$1,571.70 $330.06 $1,901.76
$2,306.14 $484.29 $2,790.43
$1,862.55 $391.14 $2,253.69
$1,879.96 $394.79 $2,274.75
$1,933.36 $406.01 $2,339.37
$2,741.62 $575.74 $3,317.36
$1,588.60 $333.61 $1,922.21
$1,915.04 $402.16 $2,317.20
$2,769.81 $581.66 $3,351.47
$2,743.95 $576.23 $3,320.18
$2,676.96 $562,16 $3,239.12
$2,467.50 $518.18 $2,985.68
$1,960.40 $411.68 $2,372.08
$1,554.80 $326.51 $1,881.31
$2,399.80 $503.96 $2,903.76
$3,242.94 $681.02 $3,923.96
$1,791.40 $376.19 $2,167.59
$1,708.15 $358.71 $2,066.86
$2,598.75 $545.74 $3,144.48
$2,119.60 $445.12 $2,564.71
$2,535.00 $532.35 $3,067.35




~ Consultant

ID Estimated Back Pay Estimated Interest Estimated Total
$2,248.71 $472.23 $2,720.94
$2,660.06 $558.61 $3,218.67
$2,535.00 $532.35 $3,067.35
$2,366.00 $496.86 $2,862.86
$2,315.30 $486.21 $2,801.51
$3,296.01 $692.16 $3,988.17
$2,121.19 $445.45 $2,566.64
$2,450.50 $514.61 $2,965.11
$2,473.32 $519.40 $2,992.71
$1,690.00 $354.90 $2,044.90
$2,425.15 $509.28 $2,934.43
$4,056.00 $851.76 $4,907.76
$2,196.32 $461.23 $2,657.55
$4,137.12 $868.80 $5,005.92
$2,374.18 $498.58 $2,872.76
$2,771.60 $582.04 $3,353.64
$2,276.53 $478.07 $2,754.60
$1,859.00 $390.39 $2,249.39
$5,097.04 $1,070.38 $6,167.42
$2,602.94 $546.62 $3,149.56
$2,551.90 $535.90 $3,087.80
$2,197.00 $461.37 $2,658.37
$3,464.50 $727.55 $4,192.05
$3,230.84 $678.48 $3,909.32
$2,431.57 $510.63 $2,942.20
$2,194.13 $460.77 $2,654.89
$1,960.40 $411.68 $2,372.08
$1,789.88 $375.87 $2,165.75
$1,960.40 $411.68 $2,372.08
$2,467.40 $518.15 $2,985.56
$3,109.60 $653.02 $3,762.62
$1,891.62 $397.24 $2,288.86
$2,471.76 $519.07 $2,990.83
$2,558.29 $537.24 $3,095.53
$1,936.71 $406.71 $2,343.42
$2,028.00 $425.88 $2,453.88
$1,690.00 $354.90 $2,044.90
$2,433.60 $511.06 $2,944.66




" Consultant

ID Estimated Back Pay Estimated Interest Estimated Total |
$3,380.00 $709.80 $4,089.80
$1,960.40 $411.68 $2,372.08
$3,481.40 $731.09 $4,212.50
$1,605.50 $337.16 $1,942.66
$2,028.00 $425.88 $2,453.88
$1,892.80 $397.49 $2,290.29
$2,101.08 $441.23 $2,542.30
$3,042.00 $638.82 $3,680.82
$1,918.96 $402.98 $2,321.94
$2,663.85 $559.41 $3,223.25
$1,859.00 $390.39 $2,249.39
$1,909.70 $401.04 $2,310.74
$2,416.80 $507.53 $2,924.33
$2,213.90 $464.92 $2,678.82
$2,507.96 $526.67 $3,034.63
$3,380.00 $709.80 $4,089.80
$2,909.03 $610.90 $3,519.93
$2,129.40 $447.17 $2,576.57
$2,028.00 $425.88 $2,453.88
$2,873.00 $603.33 $3,476.33
$1,960.40 $411.68 $2,372.08
$2,530.94 $531.50 $3,062.44
$2,611.05 $548.32 $3,159.37
$1,943.50 $408.14 $2,351.64
$2,129.40 $447.17 $2,576.57
$1,690.00 $354.90 $2,044.90
$3,197.08 $671.39 $3,868.46
$1,862.55 $391.14 $2,253.69
$2,146.33 $450.73 $2,597.06
$2,452.43 $515.01 $2,967.44
$3,516.55 $738.48 $4,255.03
$1,792.75 $376.48 $2,169.23
$1,960.40 $411.68 $2,372.08
$2,003.66 $420.77 $2,424.43
$2,737.80 $574.94 $3,312.74
$2,450.50 $514.61 $2,965.11
$2,366.00 $496.86 $2,862.86
$2,769.81 $581.66 $3,351.47 |

[
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Consultant

ID Estimated Back Pay Estimated Interest Estimated Total
$2,940.60 $617.53 $3,558.13
$1,571.70 $330.06 $1,901.76
$1,808.30 $379.74 $2,188.04
$3,549.00 $745.29 $4,294.29
$2,315.30 $486.21 $2,801.51
$2,668.44 $560.37 $3,228.82
$2,180.10 $457.82 $2,637.92 |
$3,177.20 $667.21 $3,844.4]
$3,312.40 $695.60 $4,008.01
$2,858.23 $600.23 $3,458.46
$1,960.40 $411.68 $2,372.08
$3,137.66 $658.91 $3,796.56
$2,083.64 $437.56 $2,521.20
$1,690.00 $354.90 $2,044.90
$1,521.00 $319.41 $1,840.41
$1,757.60 $369.10 $2,126.70
$2,230.80 $468.47 $2,699.27
$2,771.60 $582.04 $3,353.64
$2,785.12 $584.88 $3,370.00
$2,197.00 $461.37 $2,658.37
$2,460.64 $516.73 $2,977.38
$2,284.88 $479.82 $2,764.71
$2,433.60 $511.06 $2,944.66
$2,585.70 $543.00 $3,128.70
$2,262.91 $475.21 $2,738.12
$2,028.00 $425.88 $2,453.88
$2,839.20 $596.23 $3,435.43
$2,366.00 $496.86 $2,862.86 |
$1,690.00 $354.90 $2,044.90
$2,450.50 $514.61 $2,965.11
$2,704.00 $567.84 $3,271.84
$1,830.27 $384.36 $2,214.63
$2,516.75 $528.52 $3,045.27
$2,991.30 $628.17 $3,619.47
$2,129.40 $447.17 $2,576.57
$2,088.84 $438.66 $2,527.50
$1,960.40 $411.68 $2,372.08
$3,549.00 $745.29 $4,294.29
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Consultant

ID Estimated Back Pay Estimated Interest Estimated Total
$2,058.42 $432.27 $2,490.69
$1,690.00 $354.90 $2,044.90
$3,549.00 $745.29 $4,294.29
$1,859.00 $390.39 $2,249,39
$2,028.00 $425.88 $2,453.88
$2,788.50 $585.59 $3,374.09
$2,028.00 $425.88 $2,453.88
$2,889.90 $606.88 $3,496.78
$2,197.00 $461.37 $2,658.37
$3,042.00 $638.82 $3,680.82
$2,450.50 $514.61 $2,965.11
$2,602.60 $546.55 $3,149.15
$2,399.80 $503.96 $2,903.76
$3,549.00 $745.29 $4,294.29
$2,737.80 $574.94 $3,312.74
$2,873.00 $603.33 $3,476.33
$2,197.00 $461.37 $2,658.37
$2,535.00 $532.35 $3,067.35
$1,690.00 $354.90 $2,044.90
$2,197.00 $461.37 $2,658.37
$2,873.00 $603.33 $3,476.33
$2,636.40 $553.64 $3,190.05
$3,718.00 $780.78 $4,498.78
$3,718.00 $780.78 $4,498.78
$1,69541 $356.04 $2,051.44
$2,737.80 $5574.94 $3,312.74
$2,602.60 $546.55 $3,149.15
$2,535.00 $532.35 $3,067.35
$2,264.60 $475.57 $2,740.17
$2,433.60 $511.06 $2,944.66
$2,873.00 $603.33 $3,476.33
$2,366.00 $496.86 $2,862.86
$2,535.00 $532.35 $3,067.35
$1,690.00 $354.90 $2,044.90
$2,704.00 $567.84 $3,271.84
$3,042.00 $638.82 $3,680.82
$2,332.20 $489.76 $2,821.96
$3,211.00 $674.31 $3,885.31




Consultant

ID Estimated Back Pay Estimated Interest Estimated Total
$2,366.00 $496.86 $2,862.86
$2,704.00 $567.84 $3,271.84
$2,788.50 $585.59 $3,374.09
$1,926.60 $404.59 $2,331.19
$2,061.80 $432.98 $2,494.78
$2,535.00 $532.35 $3,067.35
$3,380.00 $709.80 $4,089.80
$3,109.60 $653.02 $3,762.62
$1,859.00 $390.39 $2,249.39
$1,859.00 $390.39 $2,249.39
$2,366.00 $496.86 $2,862.86
$3,211.00 $674.31 $3,885.31
$2,433.60 $511.06 $2,944.66
$2,795.26 $587.00 $3,382.27
$2,264.60 $475.57 $2,740.17
$3,042.00 $638.82 $3,680.82
$2,619.50 $550.10 $3,169.60
$2,873.00 $603.33 $3,476.33
$2,298.40 $482.66 $2,781.07
$2,704.00 $567.84 $3,271.84
$2,704.00 $567.84 $3,271.84
$2,704.00 $567.84 $3,271.84
$2,433.60 $511.06 $2,944.66
$1,943.50 $408.14 $2,351.64
$3,650.40 $766.58 $4,416.99
$2,704.00 $567.84 $3,271.84
$2,095.60 $440.08 $2,535.68
$3,177.20 $667.21 $3,844 .41
$2,805.40 $589.13 $3,394,54
$2,535.00 $532.35 $3,067.35
$3,718.00 $780.78 $4,498.78
$2,028.00 $425.88 $2,453.88
$2,873.00 $603.33 $3,476.33
$2,197.00 $461.37 $2,658.37
$2,636.40 $553.64 $3,190.05
$2,366.00 $496.86 $2,862.86
$2,704.00 $567.84 $3,271.84
$2,535.00 $532.35 $3,067.35




Consultant

ID Estimated Back Pay Estimated Interest Estimated Total
$2,366.00 $496.86 $2,862.86
$1,859.00 $390.39 $2,249.39
$3,143.40 $660.11 $3,803.52
$3,380.00 $709.80 $4,089.80
$2,704.00 $567.84 $3,271.84
$3,042.00 $638.82 $3,680.82
$2,366.00 $496.86 $2,862.86
$2,197.00 $461.37 $2,658.37
$2,298.40 $482.66 $2,781.07
$2,602.60 $546.55 $3,149.15
$2,298 .40 $482.66 $2,781.07




Manager

ID

Estimated Back Pay Estimated Interest Estimated Total
$1,984.91 $416.83 $2,401.75
$3,391.70 $712.26 $4,103.95
$4,430.79 $930.47 $5,361.26
$4,919.81 $1,033.16 $5,952.97
$4,970.07 $1,043.71 $6,013.79
$3,878.71 $814.53 $4,693.25
$3,064.90 $643.63 $3,708.53
$4,199.04 $881.80 $5,080.84
$3,661.76 $768.97 $4,430.73
$2,818.15 $591.81 $3,409.97
$3,581.17 $752.05 $4,333.22
$2,281.80 $479.18 $2,760.98
$3,391.70 $712.26 $4,103.95
$3,703.19 $771.67 $4,480.87
$4,632.37 $972.80 $5,605.16
$3,020.15 $634.23 $3,654.39
$3,487.24 $732.32 $4,219.56
$3,345.45 $702.54 $4,047.99
$4,971.92 $1,044.10 $6,016.02
$2,992.79 $628.49 $3,621.27
$3,380.91 $709.99 $4,090.90
$3,854.20 $809.38 $4,663.58
$3,970.14 $833.73 $4,803.87
$3,276.07 $687.98 $3,964.05
$3,396.63 $713.29 $4,109.92
$3,700.03 $777.01 $4,477.04
$4,046.91 $849.85 $4,896.76
$3,017.07 $633.58 $3,650.65
$3,372.43 $708.21 $4,080.64
$3,312.61 $695.65 $4,008.26
$3,494 .61 $733.87 $4,228.47
$3,661.49 $768.91 $4,430.41
$3,333.88 $700.12 $4,034.00
$4,508.45 $946.78 $5,455.23
$2,385.60 $500.98 $2,886.57
$4,798.48 $1,007.68 $5,806.16
$3,851.89 $808.90 $4,660.79
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Manager

ID Estimated Back Pay Estimated Interest Estimated Total
$2,900.33 $609.07 $3,509.39
$3,425.15 $719.28 $4,144.43
$4,763.79 $1,000.40 $5,764.19
$4,315.67 $906.29 $5,221.96
$3,180.87 $667.98 $3,848.86
$3,691.90 $775.30 $4,467.20
$2,970.70 $623.85 $3,594.55
$3,715.07 $780.16 $4,495.23
$4,162.54 $874.13 $5,036.67
$3,978.69 $835.53 $4,814.22 |
$4,465.59 $937.77 $5,403.37
$4,124.00 $866.04 $4,990.04
$2,701.37 $567.29 $3,268.66
$3,608.57 $757.80 $4,366.37
$3,652.24 $766.97 $4,419.21
$4,066.18 $853.90 $4,920.08
$3,533.53 $742.04 $4,275.57
$4,751.50 $997.81 $5,749.31
$2,787.24 $585.32 $3,372.56
$3,960.58 $831.72 $4,792.30
$2,500.61 $525.13 $3,025.73
$2,486.35 $522.13 $3,008.48
$2,805.86 $589.23 $3,395.09
$3,246.78 $681.82 $3,928.60
$2,890.65 $607.04 $3,497.69
$3,652.24 $766.97 $4,419.21
$3,438.57 $722.10 $4,160.66
$3,276.07 $687.98 $3,964.05
$3,369.23 $707.54 $4,076.77
$3,369.23 $707.54 $4,076.77
$2,928.81 $615.05 $3,543.86 |
$2,014.63 $423.07 $2,437.70
$4,162.54 $874.13 $5,036.67
$3,711.25 $779.36 $4,490.61
$3,347.88 $703.05 $4,050.93
$3,276.07 $687.98 $3,964.05
$3,372.43 $708.21 $4,080.64
$4,046.91 $849.85 $4,896.76
$3,584.41 $752.73 $4,337.13




Manager

ID

Estimated Back Pay Estimated Interest Estimated Total
$3,854.20 $809.38 $4,663.58
$2,778.88 $583.56 $3,362.44
$2,536.07 $532.57 $3,068.64
$3,276.07 $687.98 $3,964.05
$4,413.06 $926.74 $5,339.80
$3,661.49 $768.91 $4,430.41
$3,908.16 $820.71 $4,728.87
$3,700.03 $777.01 $4,477.04
$2,260.49 $474.70 $2,735.19
$3,482.35 $731.29 $4,213.64
$3,737.96 $784.97 $4,522,93
$4,607.89 $967.66 $5,575.55
$5,110.67 $1,073.24 $6,183.91
$3,777.81 $793.34 $4,571.15
$2,408.88 $505.86 $2,914.74
$3,218.26 $675.83 $3,894.09
$4,239.62 $890.32 $5,129.94
$2,216.17 $465.39 $2,681.56
$3,459.53 $726.50 $4,186.03
$2,205.26 $463.10 $2,668.36
$3,304.32 $693.91 $3,998.23
$2,081.27 $437.07 $2,518.34
$4,423.85 $929.01 $5,352.86
$3,978.00 $835.38 $4,813.38
$4,085.45 $857.95 $4,943.40
$4,211.22 $884.36 $5,095.57
$2,725.69 $572.40 $3,298.09
$3,488.05 $732.49 $4,220.54
$2,881.40 $605.09 $3,486.50
$4,170.71 $875.85 $5,046.56
$4,162.54 $874.13 $5,036.67
$4,188.75 $879.64 $5,068.38
$3,031.48 $636.61 $3,668.10
$3,499.73 $734.94 $4,234.67
$2,945.81 $618.62 $3,564.42
$2,775.03 $582.76 $3,357.78
$3,941.31 $827.67 $4,768.98
$3,056.96 $641.96 $3,698.92
$3,111.50 $653.41 $3,764.91




Manager

ID Estimated Back Pay Estimated Interest Estimated Total
$4,355.25 $914.60 $5,269.85
$3,140.17 $659.44 $3,799.61
$3,854.51 $809.45 $4,663.96
$3,527.37 $740.75 $4,268.11
$1,927.10 $404.69 $2,331.79
$3,276.07 $687.98 $3,964.05
$3,644.30 $765.30 $4,409.61
$2,551.02 $535.71 $3,086.73
$3,854.20 $809.38 $4,663.58
$4,678.23 $982.43 $5,660.66
$3,295.34 $692.02 $3,987.36
$2,640.13 $554.43 $3,194.56
$2,755.75 $578.71 $3,334.46
$3,453.75 $725.29 $4,179.04
$4,090.12 $858.92 $4,949.04
$3,854.20 $809.38 $4,663.58
$3,276.07 $5687.98 $3,964.05
$3,622.95 $760.82 $4,383.77
$3,545.87 $744.63 $4,290.50
$3,731.64 $783.64 $4,515.28
$3,198.99 $671.79 $3,870.78
$4,046.91 $849.85 $4,896,76
$3,116.12 $654.39 $3,770.51
$4,625.04 $971.26 $5,596.30
$4,239.62 $890.32 $5,129.94
$4,239.62 $890.32 $5,129.94
$3,198.99 $671.79 $3,870.78
$3,295.34 $692.02 $3,987.36
$3,276.07 $687.98 $3,964.05
$4,046.91 $849.85 $4,896.76
$4,162.54 $874.13 $5,036.67
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Project Manager

ID

Estimated Back Pay Estimated Interest Estimated Total
$4,598.54 $965.69 $5,564.23
$2,325.47 $488.35 $2,813.82
$2,725.70 $572.40 $3,298.10
$3,717.61 $780.70 $4,498.30
$4,025.71 $845.40 $4,871.11
$4,671.34 $980.98 $5,652.32
$3,665.72 $769.80 $4,435.52
$3,558.96 $747.38 $4,306.34
$3,411.45 $716.40 $4,127.85
$3,359.76 $705.55 $4,065.31
$3,473.95 $729.53 $4,203.48
$2,967.09 $623.09 $3,590.17
$3,449.22 $724.34 $4,173.56
$2,770.51 $581.81 $3,352.32
$2,782.68 $584.36 $3.367.04
$2,504.91 $526.03 $3,030.94
$2,230.56 $468.42 $2,698.98
$2,783.23 $584.48 $3,367.71
$2,736.87 $574.74 $3,311.62
$4,220.58 $886.32 $5,106.90
$1,879.64 $394.72 $2,274.36
$2,459.90 $516.58 $2,976.48
$3,514.99 $738.15 $4,253.13
$2,915.24 $612.20 $3,527.44
$2,108.90 $442.87 $2,551.76
$1,667.04 $350.08 $2,017.12
$4,169.17 $875.52 $5,044.69
$2,018.60 $423.91 $2,442.51
$2,784.82 $584.81 $3,369.64
$3,048.64 $640.21 $3,688.85
$2,147.07 $450.88 $2,597.95
$2,005.08 $421.07 $2,426.15
$2,345.87 $492.63 $2,838.50
$2,258.91 $474.37 $2,733.28
$3,743.77 $786.19 $4,529.96
$2,026.19 $425.50 $2,451.70
$2,306.11 $484.28 $2,790.39
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Project Manager

Estimated Back Pay Estimated Interest Estimated Total
$2,504.99 $526.05 $3,031.04
$2,395.49 $503.05 $2,898.54
$2,357.00 $494.97 $2,851.97
$2,584.43 $542.73 $3,127.16
$3,214.83 $675.12 $3,889.95
$2,972.45 $624.22 $3,596.67
$2,842.87 $597.00 $3,439.88
$2,385.63 $500.98 $2,886.61
$2,098.88 $440.76 $2,539.64
$2,087.27 $438.33 $2,525.59
$2,248.93 $472.28 $2,721.21
$1,760.99 $369.81 $2,130.80
$2,266.35 $475.93 $2,742.28
$3,720.11 $781.22 $4,501.33
$2,250.44 $472.59 $2,723.04
$2,504.91 $526.03 $3,030.94
$2,211.48 $464.41 $2,675.89
$2,931.02 $615.52 $3,546.54
$3,359.76 $705.55 $4,065.31
$3,685.84 $774.03 $4,459.86
$3,337.69 $700.92 $4,038.61
$2,619.50 $550.10 $3,169.60
$1,988.02 $417.49 $2,405.51
$4,129.13 $867.12 $4,996.24
$3,578.44 $751.47 $4,329.92
$2,405.51 $505.16 $2,910.67
$2,425.39 $509.33 $2,934.72
$2,147.07 $450.88 $2,597.95
$3,604.09 $756.86 $4,360.95
$2,891.86 $607.29 $3,499.15
$2,422.81 $508.79 $2,931.59
$2,349.88 $493.48 $2,843.36
$2,866.73 $602.01 $3,468.74
$3,220.60 $676.33 $3,896.93
$2,441.29 $512.67 $2,953.97
$1,988.02 $417.49 $2,405.51
$2,556.60 $536.89 $3,093.49
$3,407.08 $715.49 $4,122.56
$2,910.47 $611.20 $3,521.67




Project Manager

ID Estimated Back Pay Estimated Interest Estimated Total
$2,027.78 $425.83 $2,453.62
$3,775.74 $792.90 $4,568.64
$2,930.35 $615.37 $3,545.72
$1,968.14 $413.31 $2,381.45
$3,183.98 $668.64 $3,852.62
$3,639.24 $764.24 $4,403.48
$2,109.45 $442.99 $2,552.44
$4,032.91 $846.91 $4,879.82
$2,948.80 $619.25 $3,568.04
$3,840.39 $806.48 $4,646.87
$3,730.33 $783.37 $4,513.70
$3,419.40 $718.07 $4,137.48
$3,528.11 $740.90 $4,269.01
$2,636.12 $553.59 $3,189.71
$1,988.02 $417.49 $2,405.51
$3,764.52 $790.55 $4,555.07
$3,777.25 $793.22 $4,570.47
$3,852.79 $809.09 $4,661.88
$4,219.42 $886.08 $5,105.50
$4,136.68 $868.70 $5,005.38
$2,230.56 $468.42 $2,698.98
$3,226.60 $677.59 $3,904.19
$3,638.08 $764.00 $4,402.08
$2,675.76 $561.91 $3,237.67
$1,590.42 $333.99 $1,924 41
$1,832.12 $384.75 $2,216.87
$2,909.87 $611.07 $3,520.94
$3,101.32 $651.28 $3,752.59
$2,289.73 $480.84 $2,770.57
$1,825.01 $383.25 $2,208.26
$2,636.12 $553.59 $3,189.71
$2,047.67 $430.01 $2,477.67
$2,674.89 $561.73 $3,236.61
$2,385.63 $500.98 $2,886.61
$3,399.52 $713.90 $4,113.42
$3,777.25 $793.22 $4,570.47
$3,603.89 $756.82 $4,360.71
$3,697.73 $776.52 $4,474.25
$3,180.84 $667.98 $3,848.82 |
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Project Manager

ID Estimated Back Pay Estimated Interest Estimated Total
$3,771.68 $792.05 $4,563.73
$2,862.76 $601.18 $3,463.93
$3,777.25 $793.22 $4,570.47
$3,379.64 $709.72 $4,089.37
$3,379.64 $709.72 $4,089.37
$3,280.24 $688.85 $3,969.09
$3,777.25 $793.22 $4,570.47
$3,896.53 $818.27 $4,714.80
$3,419.40 $718.07 $4,137.48
$3,379.64 $709.72 $4,089.37
$2,385.63 $500.98 $2,886.61
$2,663.95 $559.43 $3,223.38
$3,101.32 $651.28 $3,752.59
$3,101.32 $651.28 $3,752.59
$2,703.71 $567.78 $3,271.49
$1,789.22 $375.74 $2,164.96
$3,280.24 $688.85 $3,969.09
$4,055.57 $851.67 $4,907.24
$2,385.63 $500.98 $2,886.61 |
$3,896.53 $818.27 $4,714.80
$2,982.04 $626.23 $3,608.26
$3,379.64 $709.72 $4,089.37
$3,876.65 $814.10 $4,690.74
$2,047.67 $430.01 $2,477.67

34




ATTACHMENT B
NOTICE TO AFFECTED CLASS MEMBERS

You may be able to receive money due to a legal settlement between Humana Inc.
and the U.S. Department of Labor.

We are writing to provide information about a legal settlement between the U.S. Department of
Labor and Humana Inc. (“Humana” ) that may benefit you. This settlement involves claims of
pay discrimination, and our records show that you may be one of the employees or former
employees covered by the settlement. If you take the steps described in this Notice by the
deadline below, you may be eligible for a payment of back wages from Humana.

WHAT IS THIS SETTLEMENT ABOUT?

The U.S. Department of Labor’s Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (OFCCP)
conducted an audit of Humana’s compensation practices in 2011 and 2012. OFCCP is the
government agency responsible for enforcing nondiscrimination and equal employment
opportunity through affirmative action requirements that apply to federal contractors. After
completing its audit, OFCCP alleged that Humana discriminated in compensation against some
Female employees in Applications Consultant, Consultant, Manager, and Project Manager base
roles at Humana’s Corporate office in 2011-12. Humana denies any violation of any laws or
affirmative action regulations and/or requirements and there has not been any adjudicated finding
that Humana violated any laws. OFCCP and Humana entered into an agreement to resolve this
matter without resorting to further legal proceedings.

COULD YOU RECEIVE MONEY UNDER THIS SETTLEMENT?

Females who worked in Applications Consultant, Consultant, Manager, and Project Manager
positions at Humana’s Corporate office as of December 31, 2011 or December 31, 2012 are
included in this settlement. You have been identified as a Female employed in one of these roles
as of December 31, 2011 and/or December 31, 2012.

WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR YOU?
You may be eligible to receive a monetary payment. This payment will represent your share
of back wages, plus interest. The final amount you will receive will be reduced by deductions

for items such as income tax withholding and Social Security contributions.

To get these benefits, you will need to release (give up) certain legal claims. A copy of the
Release for you to sign is included with this Notice.
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WHAT IS YOUR NEXT STEP?

You should read this Notice and the Claim Form and any other information you received from
OFCCP or [HUMANA CONTACT] carefully. Please do not ignore this Notice or throw it
away.

It is very important that you fill out and return all required forms on time. Otherwise, you could
miss out on receiving money.

To be eligible for a payment, you must complete, sign, and return the enclosed Claim Form and

Release no later than DATE. There are instructions on the Claim Form about how to mail these
forms. The Claim Form and Release must be received by Humana by DATE.

You will receive a monetary payment only if the information on your Claim Form confirms that
you are one of the Females covered by the settlement. After you complete and return the Claim
Form and Release, a final decision will be made about your eligibility. Under the terms of the
Agreement, it may take up to six months from the date of this Notice before you receive the
monetary payment.

You must follow all of the instructions in this Notice and return all of the documents by the
deadline of DATE to receive any money provided to you by the settlement.

HOW CAN YOU GET MORE INFORMATION?

If you have any questions, you may contact HUMANA CONTACT at CONTACT PHONE. You

may also contact Compliance Officer ||| 2t 615-781-5395 o @dol.gov or
Assistant District Director Valerie McClelland at 615-781-5395 or @dol.gov.

Enclosures (2): Information Verification Form, Release of Claims under Executive Order 11246
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ATTACHMENT C -INFORMATION VERIFICATION

Claim Form - Affected Applicants

PLEASE CAREFULLY READ THE ENCLOSED NOTICE BEFORE COMPLETING THIS
CLAIM FORM.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR FILING A CLAIM TO BE CONSIDERED FOR
MONEY (BACK WAGES) FROM THE SETTLEMENT BETWEEN OFCCP AND HUMANA
INC.

DEADLINE TO RESPOND IS DATE

If you complete this Claim Form, you may be eligible for a monetary payment from the
settlement between OFCCP and Humana, To receive any monetary payment under the terms of
the settlement between Humana and the U.S. Department of Labor’s Office of Federal Contract
Compliance Programs, you must complete and return this Claim Form and a Release postmarked
or hand-delivered on or before DATE to:

HUMANA CONTACT

If you do not submit a properly completed Claim Form and Release on or before DATE then
your claim will not be timely and you will not receive any money from this settlement.

Enclosed is a stamped, pre-addressed envelope you can use to return the Claim Form and
Release.

ki

This Claim Form will only be used to confirm important information we need in order to
make sure you are eligible to receive money under this settlement and process your
payment.

Step 1: Please confirm the following contact information to process your payment {print
legibly)

Name:

Home Phone:

Mobile Phone:

Email Address:




O [Iconfirm that the address on the envelope is correct.
[J The address on the envelope is not correct. My correct address is:

Address:

Please provide the last four digits of your social security number
The last four digits of your Social Security Number are required in order to process your
payment for tax purposes. Your Social Security Number will not be used for any other purpose.

Notify us at the address below if your address changes within the next six months, or
contact us if you have any questions about this Claim Form, the Notice, or the settlement.

Compliance Officer
U.S. Department of Labor, Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs
Louisville Area Office
600 Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Place, Room 352
Louisville, Kentucky 40202
Email: [ SlESI < do).gov
Phone: (615) 781-5395

Step 2: Sign and return along with the Release.

[ certify the above as true and correct.

Signature Date

Printed Name
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ATTACHMENT D
RELEASE OF CLAIMS UNDER EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246

This Release of Claims under Executive Order 11246 (“Release”) is a legal document. The
document states that in return for Humana Inc. ("Humana") paying you money, you agree that
you will not file any lawsuit against Humana for allegedly violating Executive Order 11246 in its
compensation of Females in Applications Consultant, Consultant, Manager, and Project
Manager roles in 2011-12. It also says that Humana does not admit that it violated any laws.
This Release says you had sufficient time to look at the Release and to talk with others about the
Release, including an attorney if you choose, and that no one pressured you into signing the
Release. Finally, it says that if you do not sign and return the document by a certain date, you
will not receive any money.

In consideration of the monetary payment (less deductions required by law) by Humana to me,
which I agree is acceptable, I agree to the following:

L

I understand that the monetary payment made by Humana to me is my portion of the monetary
settlement between the U.S. Department of Labor, Office of Federal Contract Compliance
Programs (“OFCCP”) and Humana, and that the actual payment to me will be reduced, in part, to
account for legally required payroll deductions such as income tax withholding and Social
Security contributions. I understand that this payment will be reflected on an Internal Revenue
Service Form W-2 and a Form 1099 at the end of the calendar year in which the payment is
made. Monies reported on the Form 1099 will not be reduced for taxes or other payroll
deductions and I understand that I may owe income taxes on the amounts reported to me on the
Form 1099.

II.

In exchange for the monetary amount set forth above, I hereby waive, release and forever
discharge Humana, its predecessors, successors, related entities, parents, subsidiaries, affiliates
and organizations, and its and their shareholders, directors, officers, employees, agents,
successors, and assigns, of and from any and all actions, causes of action, damages, liabilities,
and claims arising out of or actionable under Executive Order 11246, as amended, which I or
my representatives (heirs, executors, administrators, or assigns) have or may have which relate
in any way to my compensation on the basis of my gender at any time prior to the date of my
signature on this Release.

III.
I understand that Humana denies that it treated me unlawfully or unfairly in any way and that

Humana entered into a Conciliation Agreement with the OFCCP and agreed to make the
payment described above to resolve alleged disparities in compensation and to resolve this
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matter without further legal proceedings. I further agree that any monetary payment by Humana
to me is not to be construed as an admission of any liability by Humana.

IV.

I affirm that the only consideration for signing this Release is the terms set forth above and that
no other promises or assurances of any kind have been made to me by OFCCP, Humana, and/or
by any other entity or person as an inducement for me to sign the Release. I acknowledge that I
possess sufficient education and experience to fully understand the terms of this Release as it has
been written, as well as the legal and binding effect of this Release, and that if I am concerned
about how the process described in this Release or the waiver of claims in this Release applies to
me, I may contact my own advisors for appropriate legal advice.

V.

I declare that I have read this Release and that I have had a full opportunity to consider and
understand its terms and to consult with my advisors and seek legal advice. I further declare that
I have decided of my own free will to sign this Release.

VL

I understand that if I do not sign and return this Release of Claims and the Information
Verification form and return it to Humana on or before DATE, I will not be eligible for any
monetary payment from Humana under the settlement between OFCCP and Humana.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, I have signed this document on this the
,2018.

day of

Signature Date

Printed Name
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